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SECTION SF 30 BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE  
 
 
The following items are applicable to this modification:    
        CONTINUATION 
The purposes of this amendment are as follows: 

A.  To include the attached bidder inquiries and responses. 

B.  To change the proposal due date and time  

 FROM:  2:00 pm Pacific time, 24 March 2004 

 TO:  2:00 pm Pacific time, 30 March 2004. 

C. The attached revised pages supersede and replace the corresponding pages.  The attached 
revised specification sections supersede and replace the corresponding specification sections.  
Specification changes are generally identified, for convenience, by strikeout for deletions, and 
underlining of text for additions.  All portions of the revised or new pages shall apply whether or 
not changes have been indicated. 

D.  NOTICE TO OFFERORS:  Offerors must acknowledge receipt of this amendment by number and 
date on Standard Form 1442, BACK, Block 19, or by telegram. 

 
E.  All amendments are available for download this date on the Army Corps of Engineers website at 
http://www.nws.usace.army.mil/ct/. 
 
 
Enclosure: 
Bidder Inquiries and Responses 
 
 
 
 



Comment Report: All Comments 
For the Bidder Inquiry phase of project NWS 44794 FTL FY04 Whole Barracks 
Renewal W912DW-04-R-0003(sorted by Discipline , ID)  
   

Id Discipline DocType Spec Sheet Detail 

483198 Antiterrorism/Force 
Protection 

Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

Are we to use the current UFC 4-010-01 dated 08 October 2003 or the UFC 4-010-01 
dated 31 July 2002 that is provided as attachment 12? The 08 October 2003 UFC 
states in paragraph 1-6.1.1 that it applies to MILCON projects staring with the 
Fiscal Year 2004 Program. This is especially critical regarding window design as the 
requirements of the 31 July 2002 UFC are difficult to achieve.  

  

1-1 This will be corrected by amendment..  

   
 

483199 Antiterrorism/Force 
Protection 

Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

Can we use the allowed set backs of 10 and 25 meters as stated in Section 00860 
paragraph 3.1.1.2 for Echo Block, or are we to follow the stricter 45 meter setback 
requirements of UFC 4-010-01 for primary gathering facilities for the Battalion HQ 
and GA?  

  

1-1 In Table B-1 of UFC 4-010-01, the 45 meter stand off distance for primary 
gathering facilities applies where the installation does not have a 
"Controlled Perimeter". All of Fort Lewis is deemed to be within a 
"Controlled Perimeter" therefor the 25 meter stand off distance applies to 
the Battalion buildings.  

   
 

466964 Architectural Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

Ref RFP spec 
00860, 5-4.3.1  

n/a n/a 

USACE TI-809-29 "Structural Considerations for Mtl Roofing" suggests purlin be 
anchored into the structural mtl deck flutes to provide a direct uplift connection 
penetration GWB req'd for 1 hr assembly. Would it be acceptable to allow use of a 
non-structural mtl roof system in accordance with UFGS 07412 "Non-Structural 
Mtl Roofing" instead to preserve the integrity of the 1-hour assembly? If not, will 
the penetration of GWB with purlins be interpreted as violating the integrity of the 
1 hr assembly?  

  

1-1 The RFP requires a structural system if metal roofing is used. Purlins are  



not required in addition to a structural metal deck.  

   
 

482710 Architectural Plans n/a n/a n/a 

Page 00810.13 of the RFP indicates that final design drawings are to be  submitted in 
both AutoCAD and Microstation formats. Please clarify the intent of this 
requirement as this can lead to added cost to assure layering and formatting 
requirements are compiled properly in both formats, once one format is chosen 
during the design phase for the project documents. It appears that AutoCAD is the 
preferred format. Additionally, are newer versions of AutoCAD (2000i) acceptable, 
versus 14?  

  

1-1 Intent of the requirement is to obtain electronic copies of the design that 
can be used in either software format. Adherence to AEC Cadd Standard 
as required should resolve many layer/level issues. There is no preference 
on which software is used during design. However, the "As-Built" drawing 
set MUST be provided in AutoCAD v14 as described in Spec SECTION 
01702 because this is the software version currently used by the Fort Lewis 
Dept. of Public Works.  

   
 

483201 Architectural Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

Are there any ceiling height minimums for the Barracks, COFs, or HQ buildings??  

  

1-1 Ceiling height minimums are as defined by the codes (IBC, NFPA 101, etc.) 
and the various referenced industry and DOD standards. In some instances 
the minimum ceiling height may be defined by a required equipment or 
furnishing item in the room/space.  

   
 

484000 Architectural Plans and Specs 00860-32  A301  n/a 

Specification 00860-32, clause 2-3.1.16 Communication Room indicates that if the 
Telecom room is accessed directly from the exterior, it may serve both companies. If 
the telecom room is accessed through one of the equipment maintenance rooms (as 
shown on A301 of the RFP) is one telecom room serving both companies acceptable?  

  

1-1 RFP will allow one room to serve both buildings only if that room has an 
exterior access.  

   
 



485196 Architectural Specifications 00860-19 5-5.2  n/a n/a 

Section 00860, clause 5-5.2 indicates that sound-rated walls are required and states 
that sound transmission requirements are listed in Chapter 2 of the Statement of 
Work. We are unable to find these requirements listed in Chapter 2 for the 
Barracks. What sound ratings are required?  

  

1-1 This will be corrected by amendment.  

   
 

490569 Architectural Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

n/a n/a n/a 

The Statement of Work (Section 00860) indicates for many rooms (offices, 
classrooms, etc) in the Company Operations Facilities and Battalion buildings a 
floor finish of "tile". Please clarify this designation. Does "tile" indicate carpet tile 
or resilient tile?  

  

1-1 This will be clarified by amendment.  

   
 

490573 Architectural Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

The Statement of Work (Section 00860) indicates that the Common Locker/Shower 
Areas are to receive double tier lockers. The Outline Specifications (Section 00890) 
indicates that Nominal Locker size shall be 300mm W x 300mm D x 1830mm H. The 
dimensions of the lockers in the Outline Specification would indicate single tier 
lockers. Please clarify if we are to have double tier or single tier lockers.  

  

1-1 Double Tier are required as indicated in 00860. The size indicated in 
Section 00890 is the overall size of double tier locker unit - nominal size of 
each locker would be 300 x 300 x 915.  

   
 

490599 Architectural Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

The Statement of Work (Section 00860) indicates that we are to provide TA-50 gear 
lockers. Please clarify how many lockers we are required to provide in each 
building.  

  

  



1-2 Given the size of the General Storage area, the size of the TA-50 Gear 
Room, the stated sizes of the lockers, and locker clearances required, the 
government wants the maximum number of lockers that will fit in the 
space.  

   
 

500407 Architectural Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

We assumme that the STC ratings called out for the walls pertains to the partition 
construction only and not to doors, windows, or other penetrations through it. 
Please confirm.  

  

1-1 The RFP does not limit the design solution to only the wall construction. 
Requirement is listed as a design STC for the partition. This is an acoustic 
transmission value between spaces and includes all methods of limiting 
transmission. Also, please read 00860 para 5-5.2 (Interior Walls and 
Partitions).  

   
 

500444 Architectural Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

There are numerous rooms in the Functional and Area Requirements(section 00860) 
which have floor finish listed as: Tile. We assume this means resilient tile. Please 
confirm.  

  

1-1 Amendment 6 corrected all entries reading "tile" to "carpet tile".  

   
 

500445 Architectural Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

Reference section 00890,page 28,under 09250 Gypsum wallboard. This section calls 
out for a level 5 finish on areas of gypsum wallboard. This is unusual and expensive. 
Please confirm that a level 4 finish(industry standard) would be acceptable for these 
areas.  

  

1-1 Provide level 5 finish as indicated.  

   
 

500451 Architectural Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 



Reference 00860 - 122 Paragraph 5-5.2.2. Barracks corridor and stair well walls are 
abuse resistant gyp. Under 00860 -20 Paragraphs 2-2.4.1.4 and 2-2.4.2.4 these wall 
are called out as impact resistant drywall. Section 00890 - 28,29 Veneer plaster and 
Gypsum wall board state barracks corridors to be veneer plaster, abuse resistant 
gyp, and impact resistant. Please define the required wall materials for barracks 
corridors and stairs.  

  

1-1 Follow specific room/area requirements identified in 00860 Chapter 2.  

   
 

500452 Architectural Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

Reference 008920-28 and Functional area requirements (00860)Wall material type 
conflicts also exist for barracks lobbies, battalion buildings, locker room walls, and 
COF equipment maintenace room. Please advise of the wall material types required 
for these areas.  

  

1-1 Government cannot identify areas in conflict from the comment provided. 
Please indentify specific paragraphs.  

   
 

500453 Architectural Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

Reference 00890-29, 00860-122(ceilings) and 00860-20. The barracks corridor 
ceiling materials are in conflict. Please advise if acoustical ceilings are acceptable for 
the barracks corridors. If not, what is?  

  

1-1  

   
 

500454 Architectural Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

Reference 00860-122 ceramic tile, 00890-29 Ceramic Tile, and numerous ceramic 
tiled wall designations in the individual room requiremnts(00860). There are 
multiple conflicts regarding whether all wall ceramic tile needs to be installed over 
cement backer board vs water resistant gyp board. We assume the water resistant 
gyp board is acceptable in all locations but the cement backer board would be 
preferred. Please confirm.  

  

1-1 Government does not find the conflicts indicated, please state exact 



location/paragraph. Cement backer board is the requirement at all 
locations where ceramic tile is on walls. The only exception (00890-29) is 
for walls where GWB-WR must be used due to fire rating requirements of 
the wall. Offeror must be unable to find a rated/tested wall assembly with 
cement backer board before GWB-WR would be allowed.  

   
 

500455 Architectural Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

n/a n/a n/a 

Please specifically define(with product names or references) the Corps 
expectation/definition of 1)abuse resistant dywall and 2)impact resistant drywall  

  

1-1 No additional specification will be provided. Offeror should review the 
language on "impact resistant gypsum board" in UFGS 09250. General 
industry definition is that "abuse resistant" has increased resistance to 
surface abrasion, while "impact resistant" has increased resistance to 
permanent deformation damage from impact.  

   
 

502404 Architectural Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

In Addenda #6 a carpet tile specification section was added. The sleeping rooms of 
the barracks were then given a flooring designation of "carpet tile" in section 00860. 
There are still many rooms that have the designation "tile" not "carpet tile". Please 
clarify if the flooring designation of "tile" is to mean carpet tile or resilient tile.  

  

1-1  

   
 

506081 Architectural Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

n/a n/a n/a 

With regards to the STC ratings of the partitions, please confirm whether the doors 
and frames need to meet the STC rating as well. The premium for an STC 50 rated 
door/frame is in the range of $2,500. There are close to 600 doors that would need to 
be rated.This would represent a $1,500,000 premium to the project. Please advise if 
the door and frame assemblies are to be STC rated or just the partition around 
them.  

  

1-1 The Government is not aware of a requirement in the RFP that doors and 
frames need to meet the STC of the adjacent partition.  



   
 

      

 

  

  

  

  

  
 

      

 

  

  

  
 

      

 

  

  

  
 

      

 

  

  

  
 

      

 

  

  

  
 

      

 



  

  

  
 

      

 

  

  

  
 

      

 

  

  

  
 

      

 

  

  

  
 

      

 

  

  

  
 

      

 

  

  

  
 

      

 



  

  

  
 

465867 CADD Other n/a n/a n/a 

We view the time frame for responding to the RFP as exceptionally short. To aid 
our effort, we request FYO3 Project CADD drawings be made available to us 
including: -- Floor Plans -- Unit Plans -- Exterior Elevations -- Sections -- 
Dimensions for the preferred FYO2 and FYO3 layouts -- Actual FY04 site  

  

   

  

2-1 You should have received (via mail) Autocad drawings from the FY03 
Whole Barracks that include company and battalion buildings.  

   
 

473394 CADD Plans n/a C101  n/a 

RFP drawing sheet C101 shows street and building improvements made under 
FY02 and FY03 contracts. The Autocad files issued do not have any of this 
information. Is it possible to get this in Autocad format? We will need to have a site 
background that shows existing parking and Company HQ buildings in order to 
complete our site design. C101 Alpha block shows FY04 project limits and 12th 
street improvements. It would help us to have this in Autocad format as well.  

  

1-1 Two discs of Autocad information have been sent to proposers.  

   
 

483118 CADD Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

Section 00810 paragraph 5.c.(3) states that we are to use the A/E/C CADD Standard 
which allows site drawings to be shown at 1:200 or 1:400. Section 00810 paragraph 
5.f.(3)(a) states detailed site plans should be shown at 1:300 scale, which isn't 
allowed by the A/E/C Standard. The TSWS program does not allow the use of 1:300 
scale in accordance with the A/E/C CADD Standard. Consequently, we intend to 
provide site drawings at 1:400 to comply with the A/E/C CADD Standard.Please 
advise this is acceptable.  

  

1-1 This will be clarified by amendment.  

   
 



470288 Civil Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

Ref FY04 Whole Barracks Renewal electronic site plans received by Absher on 
1/23/04. It appears the electronic files are survey info prior to Barracks 
development. We expected as-built updated electronic files to end of FY03 
development. Are updated CAD files available?  

  

1-1 The government has not received as-built CAD drawings of the Echo Block 
site from either of the FY 02 or FY 03 WBR contractors - nor are these 
files anticipated during the FY 04 proposal development period.  

   
 

483115 Civil Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

n/a n/a n/a 

Alpha Block, Water main in 41 Division Drive, south end: The bridging document 
drawings sheet C109 shows a new 305 mm water main extending south to the south 
limit of work for this contract. There is a gap in the new water main, then another 
dark line continues to the intersection at B Street.The heavy line that appears to be 
a new water main extends beyond the defined limit of work. Also Section 0860, 
(chapter 4,) page 98 , 4-8.2.1 3rd sentence states " Mains shall be looped..."We are 
currently terminating the new water main at the limit of work line. Do you agree 
with our design direction (per the drawings) or shall we loop the system per 0860?   

  

1-1 Provide a loop system as directed in Section 00860.  

   
 

483117 Civil Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

Reference the sanitary sewer, sheet C109. 41st Division Dr, south end. The sewer 
main ends at the south limit of the work. A manhole is shown farther south of the 
intersection of B street.We currently have stopped the sewer at the south limit of 
work and placed a manhole there.Do you agree with our design direction or do you 
want us to continue the line south to the intersection?  

  

1-1 The design solution appears to be in accord with the RFP.  

   
 

483120 Civil Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

Sewage Lift StationSheet C109 shows sanitary piping terminating in a new manhole 



near the intersection of "D" Street and 41ST Division Drive. We are assuming that 
a gravity system as shown on C109 can adequately provide service for the project, 
and there is no requirement for the lift station shown on sheet C506. Please confirm.  

  

1-1 Offeror must verify that gravity system as proposed will provide adequate 
service and meet all requirements of the RFP.  

   
 

483122 Civil Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

Radon GasSection 00860 paragraph 4-1.4 states the design ". . . shall include 
provisions for the reduction of radon entry and facilitate its removal." No 
information is provided regarding the extent of existing or future radon in the area. 
Consequently we have assumed an underslab perforated pipe collection system 
naturally ventilated (without a fan assist) will be sufficient to meet the requirement 
of the RFP. Please confirm.  

  

1-1 No pre-approval can be made, however the system described appears to be 
reasonable.  

   
 

483125 Civil Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

Availability of Site DrawingsAttachments 3 and 4 state the CADD files developed 
for the construction of projects in FY 02 and FY 03 will be made available to 
offerors. None of the drawings provided to date show any of the new site work 
around the previous year's COF's or BN HQ, including finish grade elevations and 
newly installed utility inverts. When will this information be made available?  

  

1-1 Two CD's containing Autocad information have been mailed to proposers.  

   
 

483197 Civil Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

On sheet M101 Note 2 states "NEW LINES SHALL BE RUN FROM THE MAIN 
LINE TO THE MECHANICAL ROOM FROM EACH BUILDINGS. THE 
LOCATIONS OF MECHANICAL ROOMS ARE SHOWN IN THE DRAWING 
(*)." Does this mean we are responsible to coordinate natural gas service to the 
existing buildings in addition to the buildings bring constructed under this contract?  

  



1-1 This will be clarified by amendment.  

   
 

488794 Civil Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

We are assuming that the number of parking spaces for the Barracks at the Alpha 
Site is 80% of 300 Occupants or 240 spaces and that this includes spaces for visitors, 
administrators, etc. (The drawing C109, however, calls out 300 spaces). Are our 
assumptions correct?  

  

1-1  

   
 

488796 Civil Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

n/a n/a n/a 

We are assuming that the roads associated with the Alpha site within the limits of 
construction as shown on C107 are to be constructed, because new utility lines are 
being installed under these streets in this contract and the existing roads are shown 
to be demolished. However, there is no legend, notes or callouts to indicate that 
these are new roads under this contract. Are our assumptions correct?  

  

1-1  

   
 

491816 Civil Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

n/a n/a n/a 

Section 00860 (Statement of work) item 4-14 -Gas Distribution System indicates that 
"new natural gas distribution piping shall be the responsibility of Puget Sound 
Energy (PSE) Co. Contractor shall coordinate with PSE for the installation of the 
new natural gas piping". PSE will furnish and install the piping however, they 
sometimes require the contractor to excavate and backfill the trench for the piping. 
Are we to include the trench/bachfill costs? If YES, then please provide information 
showing the location and extent of the natural gas main that we will be tying into for 
Alpha Block.  

  

1-1 No, the contractor should not include trench/backfill costs for the Natural 
Gas piping system. However, trench and backfill of the propane system is a 
cost borne by the offeror.  

  

 



491819 Civil Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

To date, we have not received any information regarding the existing elevations for 
Echo block. We need elevations of paving and utilities installed in FY02 and FY03 
because we are adding new paving to previously constructed paving and tying new 
utilties into previously installed utilities. We also need existing grade elevations for 
our limits of work.  

  

1-1 Projects are currently under construction and requested as-built data is 
not yet available.  

   
 

491820 Civil Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

n/a n/a n/a 

Section 00860 (Statement of work) item 3-10 - Sidewalk Design indicates that a 
sidewalk shall be provided on the west side of 41st Division Drive. Please clarify if a 
new curb & gutter is also required on the west side of 41st Division Drive.  

  

1-1 A new curb and gutter is not required on the west side of 41st Division 
drive.  

   
 

507886 Civil Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

02556 - Gas 
Distribution 
System  

n/a n/a 

Spec Section 00890, 02556 - Gas Distribution System state "The Contractor shall 
provide polyethylene propane/air gas piping (separate from the natural gas piping 
to be installed by PSE) from the point of connection to each building. Piping shall be 
sized for a supply pressure of 275 kPa (40 psig)." It is our understanding the 
polyethylene piping is limited to 30psig. Suggest supply pressure be reduced to 30 
psig. Welded steel pipe installation would be cost prohibitive.  

  Evaluation not conducted 
 

483405 Contracting Specifications n/a n/a n/a 

Reference "!!!CAUTION TO OFFERORS!!!" sheet, item 3 Availability of funds. 
The item states that funds are not available and that no award will be made until 
funds are made available. When will funds be made available? When do you expect 
to award?  

  

1-1 This is standard language. The project is in the President's FY04 budget 



and funds are appropriated for the project. Funds will be available once 
the proposals are evaluated and the price is known. Funds are provided to 
the District by HQUSACE once the award amount is known.  

   
 

      

 

  

  

  
 

      

 

  

  

  
 

      

 

  

  

  
 

      

 

  

  

  
 

      

 

  

  

  
 

      

 



  

  

  
 

      

 

  

  

  
 

      

 

  

  

  
 

482348 Electrical Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

n/a n/a n/a 

Section 00890 page 36, Provide service connections to accomodate gas or electric 
dryers." Circut Load for gas dryers is 70,200 watts. Circut Load for Electric Dryers 
is 187,500 watts. This makes the Laundry circut load 257,700 watts. This affects 
everything from the number of panelboards to transformer size. This is also, a 
significant cost issue to the project if this requirement has to be met.  

  

1-1 The stated requirement is to allow our customer to hook-up EITHER a gas 
dryer OR an electric dryer depending on what he has at the moment.  

  

 

482367 Electrical Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 00890  n/a n/a 

RFP Section 00890, GFCI, Dispensing Ice Machine, information is incomplete 
according to manufacturer. Model QFA-291, is only the storage bin for the ice and 
does not include the ice maker. Several different ice makers can fit the specified bin. 
We need to know which ice maker the Government will use so thew appropriate 
electrical load can be determined.  

  

1-1 This requirement will be corrected by amendment.  



   
 

482401 Electrical Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

00860  n/a n/a 

Section 00860, paragraph 4-16.3.2, "ALPHA BLOCK", seems to require 129mm 
(5") conduit and #500 kcmil size conductors. RFP Drawing E105, clearly indicates 
to provide 103mm (4") conduit and #2 AWG size of conductors. This appears to be 
a direct conflict. Please clarify.  

  

  

2-0 Corrected in Amendment 6. 

   

   
 

483202 Electrical Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

Is there any exterior lighting requirements at the tank farms?  

  

1-1  

   
 

498703 Electrical Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

n/a n/a n/a 

In the RSU building, we are required to remove two existing air conditioning unit 
that each have 20 tons of cooling and replace with two new units that each have 25 
tons of cooling. Contractor assumes that the existing building has the necessary 
electrical in place to support the new (larger) units required. Please confirm.  

  

1-1 Government does not know what the existing electrical system capacity is 
at the RSU facility.  

   
 

500311 Electrical Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

n/a n/a n/a 

Please advise if remote monitoring or Fire Protection is required for the Propane 
Tank Farm.  

  

1-1 Remote monitoring is required only to the extent that it is stated in the 
RFP or mandated by code (IBC, NFPA, etc.), or Army Standard.  



   
 

482617 Energy Conservation Other n/a n/a n/a 

LEED refers to ASHRAE 90.1-1999, as well as any local energy code that may have 
jurisdiction and to use the more stringent of the two. Are there any local energy 
codes in affect for this project, such as the State of Washington Energy Code, etc?  

  

1-1 This will be corrected by amendment.  

   
 

466183 Energy Mon & 
Controls 

Specifications 15910  n/a n/a 

Reference 15910-Direct Digital Controls; Part 2-Products;Item2.1;a,b,c and d. Items 
a,b and c specifically states items will be provided by the bidder. Item "d" has no 
requirement for provision. Who will provide and program the Tridium 
hardware/software and connect to the Ft.Lewis LAN/WAN? Tridium is a 
proprioratary system/software that is not available to all qualified bidders. Please 
advise  

  

1-1 The contractor should provide and program the Tridium 
hardware/software and make the connection to the Ft. Lewis WAN. There 
are multiple vendors that are licensed to provide the Tridium products.  

   
 

498387 Equipment Other 00860 and 00890  n/a n/a 

Are the stacked washer/dryer units gov GFGI or GFCI? Spec 00860 clause 2-2.1.3.3 
calls out GFGI while Spec 00890 section 11452 Residential Appliances calls out 
GFCI.  

  

1-1  

   
 

500386 Fire Protection/Life 
Safety 

Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

n/a n/a n/a 

Are there any requirements/special provisions for fire protection at the Propane 
Tank Farms?  

  Evaluation not conducted 
 

465776 General Other n/a n/a n/a 

We are evaluating the time frame allowed for responding to the  RFP. We have 



serious concerns regarding the time frame allowed to incorporate all the proposal 
requirements. Please provide information as soon as possible (preferrably by Feb 4) 
whether or not you will be extending the due date of this proposal. We request at 
least a one month extension.  

  

  

  

2-1 Please refer to amendment.  

   
 

467584 General Other 00110-INTRO-12  n/a n/a 

The summary of order of importance for technical criteria states A is more 
important than B. The next sentence states A, B, C, D are equal to each other. Please 
clarify  

  

1-1 Please refer to amendment.  

   
 

484010 General Specifications SF1442 - 00010-6  n/a n/a 

Are we to submit a subcontracting plan with our proposal or 5 days after offer 
closing? The table of contents section "RETURN THE FOLLOWING WITH 
YOUR OFFER" states that SF1442 pages 00010-1 thru 00010-5 are to be included 
and that *Additionally, a subcontracting plan will be required 5 working days after 
closing. Specification 00010-6 paragraph 1 states the plan is to be submitted with 
our proposal. Specification 00110-INTRO-23, clause 9.3 states the subcontracting 
plan is to be submitted with the initial price proposal.  

  

1-1 This will be clarified by amendment.  

   
 

484011 General Specifications n/a n/a n/a 

The table of contents states that SF1442 page 00010-3 is reserved for use at a later 
time. This sheet is not included in our documents. Is this sheet required to be 
submitted with our proposal or is it used after the proposal.  

  

1-1 Each offeror must submit a completed SF1442 with their Phase Two 
proposal.  

   
 



485541 General Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

In light of receipt of new Civil information(CADD files received 2/23) and no 
amendments yet issued for previously submitted questions, please allow a final bid 
extension of 9 days to 3/18/04.  

  

1-1 The extension will be defined by amendment.  

   
 

490564 General Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

n/a n/a n/a 

Section 00860 paragraph 3.00 provides a ``DESIGN SUMBITTAL SCHEDULE`` 
requiring 60 days after NTP to deliver the 65% Site, Utilities and Building 
Foundaiton submittal, and 90 days after NTP to deliver the 95% Site Utilities and 
Building Foundation submittal - essentially allowing 30 days to advance the design 
from 65% to 95%. Section 00810 paragraph 3.00, sub paragraphs b.(1) and b.(4) 
require a 21 day government review and a follow-up conference 1 week after. This 
does not coincide with the 90 day window. Please advise.  

  

1-1 Contractor will need to sequence provision of the 65% package to allow for 
government review AND meet the 90 CD limit on the 95% review. The 60 
CD from NTP is the maximum time available before submittal. A 30 CD 
time separation less 21 working days for review, leaves the contractor a 
week for comment incorporation. If more time is wanted, the 65% 
submittal needs to occur earlier.  

   
 

490609 General Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

Does the Reps and Certification section(00600) need to be filled out and returned 
with the RFP response?  

  

1-1 Yes, the reps and certs need to be filled out and returned with the price and 
technical proposals for Phase II.  

   
 

490631 General Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

n/a n/a n/a 

Both Clauses for Buy Ame rican only and NAFTA are included in the RFP. Is this a 
NAFTA allowed materials/equipment project?  



  

1-1 The Buy America clause in this RFP is 52.225-12 Notice of Buy American 
Act Requirement - Construction Materials Under Trade Agreements. 
(52.225-9 and 252.225-7036 were removed with Amendment 2 dated 16 Dec 
2003.) This is a NAFTA allowed materials/equipment project.  

   
 

490641 General Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

n/a n/a n/a 

Are there requirements/goals for minority and female tradesmen 
participation(Typically called out in FAR 52.222-23.  

  

1-1 The goals and requirements for minority, female, etc participation are 
included in the RFP on pages 00010-6 through 00010-12. Large businesses 
must submit a subcontracting plan with their Phase II offer, in accordance 
with instructions in the RFP (on pages 00010-6 through 00010-12).  

   
 

491944 General Other n/a n/a n/a 

We are in an unprecedented and continuing volatile steel market. Neither price 
quotes nor delivery dates are being honored by domestic steel mills. Pricing is 
currently based on date of shipping, not on order date. We ask that the you please 
give this matter careful consideration. An opportunity exists now to address this 
matter in way that minimizes excessive contingencies from being included in the 
offers you receive. A partial solution may be to add a �steel market� allowanc e to 
the bid schedule. Please advise as to how we may address this issue in the context of 
a firm fixed price contract.  

  

1-1 At this point the Government chooses to deal with it when it occurs. Please 
refer to section 01320 paragraph 3.7 which describes Contractor's requests 
for time extensions.  

   
 

498700 General Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

Please provide as built drawings of the RSU building. These documents are needed 
to accurately estimate / design the work required in this building (building 
expansion, new mechanical and electrical, etc).  

  

1-1 Government does not have as-built drawings that depict the current 



configuration of mechanical, electrical and communications equipment 
installed in the RSU.   

   
 

499183 General Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

n/a n/a n/a 

Please advise if the army base has a recycling program in place. If so, What are the 
general provisions of this program?  

  

  

   
 

500378 General Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

Due to the lack of defined scope for the  RSU building renovations, could the Gov't 
establish an allowance($150,000)for this work for all bidders to use??  

  

1-1 Assuming this risk does not appear to be a benefit to the Government.  

   
 

500396 General Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

Is state or other sales/use taxes applicable to the project? If so, who is to carry these 
costs?  

  

1-1 As stated in the solicitation FAR clause 52.229-3 Federal, State, and Local 
Taxes, the contract price includes all applicable Federal, State, and local 
taxes and duties.  

   
 

500448 General Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

n/a n/a n/a 

Reference RFP Attachment 6 - paragraph 2 Drafting. This paragraph states that 
proposal drwgs are to be provided in full and 1/2 size sets. However, section 00110 - 
Intro paragraph 7.1.7 states that prposal drawings should be limited to 11 x 17 (1/2 
size). Please advise how many half size and how many full size sets of proposal 
drawings are required to be submitted.  

  

  



  
 

502421 General Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

n/a n/a n/a 

Many of the responses we have received to our individual questions from the Corp 
have addressed "gray" areas of the RFP. I assume all of these questions and their 
answers will be produced in an addendum for all bidders to see. Please advise.  

  

  

  
 

466770 Mechanical Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

00860, page 144, 
para 10-3.8: RSU 
Building  

n/a n/a 

Ref RFP spec section 00860, page 144, para 10-3.8: RSU Building1) Can we have a 
sketch of the existing ESS Room showing the locations of the indoor unit, outdoor 
unit and ductwork? 2) Assuming the new computer equipment is similar to the 
existing equipment. You will need two indoor units. Could you give of a sketch of 
what type of building extension you would like to see for the indoor units? 3) When 
we remove the existing indoor unit what is the scope of work required to patch the 
existing vacated space? (This might require floor, ceiling and/or wall work)  

  

1-1 1. No additional information will be provided at this time. 2. Design of 
building expansion is the offeror's responsibility. 3. Repairing damaged 
surfaces in vacated space is offeror's judgement.  

   
 

482422 Mechanical Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

The RFP calls for PVC pipe for the waste and vent system. Can ABS pipe be 
substituted? ABS is easier to work with in cold climates  

  

  

2-0 Done in amendment 0006. 

   

   
 

482432 Mechanical Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

n/a n/a n/a 

The RFP calls for stainless steel tanks. Can glass lined steel tanks be substituted? 



The reason for this is the cost of the stainless steel tanks. Based on the criteria 
approximately three 2,500 gal tanks will be necessary for the domestic hot water 
storage. This means customa made tanks. If stainless steel is require what type does 
it need to be? Do the tanks have to be ASME stamped?  

  

1-1 This will be corrected by amendment.  

   
 

482436 Mechanical Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

The RFP calls for gas to the dryers. If this requirement holds, we will have large gas 
lines running thoughout the building.  

  

1-1 The requirement holds, configuration of gas supply piping and sizing of gas 
lines is part of the contractor's design.  

  

 

482575 Mechanical Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

n/a n/a n/a 

To provide better efficiencies for domestic and space heating hot water we would 
like to use a high efficiency condensing type boilers that will give 95% efficiency at 
full load. The RFP calls for scotch marine boilers that are not very efficient and take 
up alot of space in the mechanical room. Can the higher efficiency condensing type 
boiler be substituted for the scotch marine boiler?  

  

1-1 Scotch marine boilers are a Fort Lewis requirement. High efficiency 
condensing boilers are not acceptable to the installation.  

  

 

482583 Mechanical Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

n/a n/a n/a 

The RFP states that loads shall be included in the room calculations for the BEQ. 
Since the building is only being provided with a space heating and ventilation sytem 
we will only be performing heat loss calculations. The internal heat gains listed in 
the RFP would reduce the space heating requirement. Usually this is not allowed. 
Do you want us to include the listed heat gains?  

  

1-1 No, please do not include the listed heat gains when calculating the heat 



loss.  

   
 

482600 Mechanical Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

The RFP states that reidential range hoods shall be directly ducted to the exterior. 
In the next sentence it states that a central variable speed exhaust fan located in the 
attic is to be provided for the range exhaust. Which will be required?  

  

1-1 The requirement will be corrected by amendment.  

  

 

482602 Mechanical Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

n/a n/a n/a 

The RFP requires that the dryer vents be routed through a heat recovery unit. This 
would require 150 heat recovery units, and physically there aren't any utilities in 
close proximity to the dryer vent that we could exchange haet with. Is this a 
requirement that we are going to stick with?  

  

1-1 The intent of the RFP was to have one (or multiple) central heat recovery 
units connected to several dryer vents. The heat recovery unit would be 
used to heat outside air supply during the winter. Any requirements that 
are not met must be explained/justified per proposal format requirements.  

   
 

482613 Mechanical Plans and Specs n/a n/a n/a 

Please clarify the intent of the Ventilation System for the facilities. The summer 
outside design temperature is 80 to 85 deg F. Is the intent to keep the indoor 
temperature to within a given range of the outdoor temperature (say 10 deg F) 
and/or to provide a specific air change rate per hour?  

  

1-1 Since there is no air conditioning in the project, the intent is to provide 
cooling during the summer by using outside air as much as possible to 
minimize uncomfortable temperatures indoors.  

  

 

482739 Mechanical Plans and Specs n/a n/a n/a 

From review of previous FY project documents, it appears that combination waste 



and vent sanitary sewer systems were utilized. It is our interpretation that the 2003 
edition of International Plumbing Code places restrictions on this type arrangement 
for serving water closets. Please confirm or clarify what is acceptable at Ft.Lewis.  

  

1-1 Design must comply with the latest (2003) version of the IPC - as indicated 
in 00860-para 8-1.  

   
 

482744 Mechanical Plans and Specs n/a n/a n/a 

What is the intent with regards to control of the propane storage and distribution 
system? Will the system be switched manually from natural gas to propane and 
visa-versa, or is some other form of control envisioned?  

  

1-1 A manually switched system will be used.  

  

 

482776 Mechanical Specifications n/a n/a n/a 

Specification 00860-134, Paragraph 8-8.2,indicates that stainless steel storage tanks 
are to be provided for domestic how water storage. Our suppliers have noted that 
water with a pH above normal increases the chance for corrosion over time. Are 
other tank and/or linings acceptable to the owner such as glass lined carbon steel?   

  

1-1 Stainless steel storage tanks shall be provided per RFP. Alternate tank 
materials and/or linings are NOT acceptable.  

   
 

483200 Mechanical Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

Per the RFP, the washer/dryer units in each room are allowed to vent directly to the 
outside of each unit. However, each vent location will be less than 10' from the living 
unit's operable window in addition to being unsightly. Is this acceptable? Is a 
common system, vented through the attic, more desirable?  

  

1-1 This will be clarified by amendment.  

   
 

484008 Mechanical Other 00860 4-14  M103  n/a 

Please provide the total peak flow requirements for each of the two propane tank 



farms. The flow requirement needs to include the capacity requirements for 
facilities already built and any future anticipated facilities (FY02,03,05,06,etc). This 
flow capacity is required to size the equipment (pumps, vaporizers, compressors, 
mixers) between the storage tanks and distribution system at each tank farm.  

  

1-1 Propane flow requirements will be provided by amendment.  

   
 

484009 Mechanical Other 00860 4-14  M103  n/a 

Please provide the total peak flow requirements for each of the two propane tank 
farms. The flow requirement needs to include the capacity requirements for 
facilities already built and any future anticipated facilities (FY02,03,05,06,etc). This 
flow capacity is required to size the equipment (pumps, vaporizers, compressors, 
mixers) between the storage tanks and distribution system at each tank farm.  

  

1-1 Propane flow requirements will be provided by amendment.  

   
 

498705 Mechanical Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

n/a n/a n/a 

Contractor assumes that it is acceptable for the new propane-air lines to run in the 
same trench as the natural gas lines. Please confirm. (Submitted 10-Mar-04 by Mark 
Schmidt mark.schmidt@mortenson.com 763-287-5552. )  

  

1-1 Government cannot confirm this assumption. Government has no control 
on the decisions of PSE relative to provision of natural gas supply lines. (A) 
PSE may not route their gas lines in locations consistent with the Offeror's 
alignments for propane-air lines. (B) PSE may not allow the Offeror to 
share the same trench.  

   
 

      

 

  

  

   
 

482457 Plumbing Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

n/a n/a n/a 



The RFP talks about using reclaimed water for the toilets. Where is the water 
coming from, and at what pressure is it delivered to our buildings? We have heard 
preliminary discussions about the water coming from a lake. If that is the case, we 
need to know the location and the elevation of the lake with respect to our buildings.  

  

1-1 Reclaimed water from stormwater (roof drainage) was used for toilet 
flushing on previous projects. Government is not aware of any discussion 
to use lake water for any purpose on this project.  

   
 

482565 Plumbing Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

In trying to reduce our water usage for LEEDs compliance we would like to use a 
dual flush water closet. The one we would like to use is manufactured in Australia. 
Will this be a problem? Also, this water closet comes with a PVC tank, not vitreous 
china. Will this be acceptable?  

  

1-1 Australia is not on the list of "Buy American" countries and therefore this 
product would not be acceptable. See RFP section 00700 - 52.225-5, 52.225-
11 and 52.225-12.  

   
 

482567 Plumbing Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

What is the water pressure of the domestic water being suppied to the site? (  

  

1-1 Current water flow data is not available. Contractor will need to verify 
current conditions during design and also required by UFC 3-600-01 to 
witness fire flow tests to verify data.  

  

 

482577 Plumbing Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 

The boot wash details we have been given from previous projects at the subject base 
indicate the drain for the boot wash being piped without a trap. This would indicate 
the boot wash is being piped to the storm drain, orday lighted somewhere and not 
connected to the sewer. Please verify.  

  

1-1 The boot wash in the previous projects drained to the  sanitary sewer and 



should have included a trap at the boot wash drain.  

   
 

482615 Plumbing Plans and Specs n/a n/a n/a 

Please clarify the design temperature for inlet domestic cold water and temperature 
rise for heating the domestic water. There is reference in the RFP to both 4.4degC 
and 10degC (40degF and 50degF) inlet water temperature, (re: system schematic). 
Also, in section 00860 there is indication to design for a 32degC rise for domestic hot 
water. We currently assume the intent of the RFP is to use 10degC (50degF) inlet 
water temperature and heat to 60degC (140degF) for storage, for a 90 degree rise.  

  

1-1 This will be corrected by amendment.  

   
 

482618 Plumbing Plans and Specs n/a n/a n/a 

Are garbage disposals required at any sinks on the project?  

  

1-1 Garbage disposals are not required for any sinks in this project.  

   
 

482620 Plumbing Plans and Specs n/a n/a n/a 

Are drinking fountains acceptable in lieu of electric water coolers?  

  

1-1 Drinking Fountains are NOT acceptable in place of Electric Water 
Coolers.  

   
 

482623 Plumbing Design Analysis n/a n/a n/a 

The RFP specifies the morning shower period and usage requirements. We assume 
the next shower period is late in the afternoon or evening and the domestic water 
heating system will have the entire day to recover back to full storage capacity. 
Please confirm.  

  

1-1 Confirmed. Water heating system can recover during the day.  

  

 

483203 Risk Assessment Request for 
Proposal (RFP) n/a n/a n/a 



Does the Owner insure the project during design and construction against Acts of 
Terrorism or is the Design/Builder to assume/insure against this risk??  

  

1-1 The design/builder is not required to insure against acts of terrorism. The 
only types of insurance required are specified in Section 00800 Special 
Clause SC-5 Insurance - Work on a Government Installation.  

  

 

486489 Site Plans and Specs 00860 3.1.2  C107  n/a 

Drawing C107 shows 12th street 1 vehicle intersection accessing the FY05 site, none 
accessing the FY04 site. Is it acceptable to design the entry through the FY05 site or 
do we show another entry off of 12th street to avoid the FY05 parcel? If we are to 
avoid the FY05 parcel, do we move the vehicle intersection shown on C107 or create 
an additional intersection for FY04? Additionally, specification 00860 3.1.2 calls for 
road access along C street into the parking area which will cut through the FY05 
site yet C107 shows no intersection along C street. Please Clarify.  

  

1-1 Jim Scrinde says we should make a change to C107 to include this entrance 
to the parking lot.  

   
 

467010 Specifications Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

Amendment 4, 
spec 00110-
INTRO-12, para 4  

n/a n/a 

Amendment 4, spec 00110-INTRO-12, para 4 state...4. SUMMARY OF ORDER OF 
IMPORTANCE for Technical Criteria: - Criterion A is more important than 
criterion B. - Criterion A B, C, and D are equal to each other.The order of 
importance conflict each other concerning criterion A - Sustainability. Please 
clarify.  

  

   

  

2-1 Please refer to amendment.  

   
 

468744 Specifications Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

00810, 3.00, b, 1  n/a n/a 

Ref RFP spec section 00810, 3.00, b, 1. Please verify Government review time for 
design review is 21 working days not 21 calandar days. The Contrator is required to 



submit 65% site, utilities & fdtn w/in 60 CD of NTP and 95% site, utilities & fdtn 
w/in 90 CD of NTP. If the Government takes 21 WD to review the 1st design 
submittal package, 65% Site, Utilities & Fdtn , there would be no time for the 
contractor to incorporate the Gov't comments into the 95% site, utilities & fdtn.  

  

1-1 21 working days is correct.  

   
 

476851 Specifications Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 00810, 3.00, b, 1  n/a n/a 

Ref comment ID 468744 response dated 2/9/04, please note the 90% site, utilities & 
fdtn design submittal would be due due 2 days after the government finishes review 
of the 65% - site, utilities & fdtn submittal. This would not allow time for us to 
incorporate your review comments. To meet the design schedule in the RFP we 
would be forced to submit the 90% site, utilities & fdtn submittal w/out 
incorporating COE review comments. We suggest allowing the contractor to submit 
the 90% site, utilities & fdtn within 14CD of receipt of COE 65% submittal review 
comment.  

  

1-1 RFP states 'no more than 60 calendar days' for the submittal of the 65% 
Site, Utilities and Building Foundations. The contractor may submit the 
65% design earlier if he desires more time after the  government's review 
period to incorporate comments and complete his design within the 90 days 
allowed.  

   
 

482732 Specifications Specifications n/a n/a n/a 

Page 00810-13, second sentence, indicates HTRW preconstruction work. Please 
define HTRW.  

  

1-1 This will be defined in amendment.  

   
 

483846 Specifications Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 00800, SC-1  n/a n/a 

Spec section 0800, SC-1 state "...complete the entire work ready for use not later 
than 720 calendar days after date of receipt by contractor of notice to proceed." 
Was the intent 720 calendar days after design notice to proceed or constrution 
notice to proceed? Note that previous Barracks project on Ft. Lewis had a 720 cd 
duration for contruction only. We suggest 720 calendar days after construction 
notice to proceed.  



  

1-1 This will be corrected by amendment.  

   
 

483885 Specifications Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

01451-5, 3.4.3  n/a n/a 

Ref spec section 01451-5, 3.4.3: we understand the minimum QC organization as 
follows: 1 full time CQC system manager, 1 additional full time QC, 1 mechanical 
qc 3 days/wk. Is an electrical QC required? Electrical QC is included in the 
experience matrix but a specific requirement to provide an electrical qc is not 
included.  

  

1-1 To be corrected by amendment.  

   
 

483900 Specifications Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

00860, 3-7.2  n/a n/a 

Landmark Feature: The landmark feature is not specifically addressed as one of the 
criterion in the phase 2 technical factors. What is the relative importance of the 
landmark feature? Since the landmark feature is an option on the bid schedule, will 
it be included in the price evaluation? Please provide additional design criteria on 
the landmark feature. Also, we suggest a budget range be established for the 
landmark feature to aid the offeror�s in designing to a scope that will meet the 
gov�t expectations.   

  

1-1 1. None of the buildings is specifically addressed as a stand alone criterion 
either. The 1. Landmark feature will be reviewed with all other buildings 
and features as a project group with respect to each evaluation criterion. 2. 
The importance of any project component is as defined by the RFP 
description. 3. Yes, option items are reviewed for their total project cost 
impact and their influence on the value of the proposal. 4. Design criteria is 
intentionally limited in the RFP to allow the offerors to express their 
creativity. 5. Budget range considerations need to reflect the stated project 
cost constraints. If the landscape feature option is exercised, it will need to 
be developed within the total project construction cost.  

  

 

484523 Specifications Request for 
Proposal (RFP) M105  n/a n/a 

Propane/air distribution lines are not sized on M105. Provide total gas load 



including gas load for future expansion for both alpha and echo block. Gas loads are 
required to properly size the distribution lines as well as propane tank farm 
equipment such as vaporizer, air compressor etc.  

  

1-1 Propane loads will be provided by amendment.  

   
 

488712 Specifications Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

n/a n/a n/a 

The RFP is unclear as to whether or not we provide the phone/data cabling and TV 
cabling between the communication room and the sleeping rooms. The previous 
barracks were wired by DOIM. Plz clarify.  

  

1-1 Paragraphs 4-18 and 9.8 describe the cable television requirements. It is 
stated that the cable TV company will provide and install their cables. 
Although the explanation for the Qwest and cable TV systems is contained 
in the Site chapter, it is stated that Qwest and the cable TV vendor will 
supply their own cables.  

   
 

466926 Structural Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

RFP Section 6-3 
page 00860-126  

n/a n/a 

RFP Section 6-3 page 00860-126 states that the minimum live load requirements for 
the UEPH (Barracks) floor is 60 psf. IBC 2000 Table 1607.1 requires 40 psf for 
residential live load. Does the 60 psf live load include partition dead load (40 psf + 
20 psf) or should partition dead loads be added to the 60 psf?  

  

1-1 Please use 60 PSF as a floor live load only. Partition dead loads must be 
added to the 60 PSF.  

   
 

466928 Structural Request for 
Proposal (RFP) 

RFP Section 6-3  n/a n/a 

RFP Section 6-3 states that the minimum corridor live load is 80 psf. IBC 2000 
Table 1607.1 requires 100 psf minimum live load. Please confirm that 100 psf 
minimum live load is required at all corridors.  

  

1-1 This will be clarified by amendment.  

   
 



485816 Structural Plans and Specs n/a n/a n/a 

Does this project have work in the Div. 5 & 7 scopes?  

  

1-1 Assume question is indicating CSI Divisions 5 and 7. Yes, there will be 
many products required that are specified in these Divisions. Specific 
requirements will depend on offeror's designs.  
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